

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

ONE HUNDREDTH SESSION

TWELFTH DAY

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA
Senate Chamber, Pierre
Thursday, January 30, 2025

The Senate convened at 1:00 p.m., pursuant to adjournment, the President Pro Tempore presiding.

The prayer was offered by the Chaplain, John Fette, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by Senate pages Danni Kotalik and Jackson Faulkner.

Roll Call: All members present.

APPROVAL OF THE JOURNAL

MR. PRESIDENT:

The Committee on Legislative Procedure respectfully reports that the Secretary of the Senate has had under consideration the Senate Journal of the 11th day.

All errors, typographical or otherwise, are duly marked in the temporary journal for correction.

And we hereby move the adoption of the report.

Respectfully submitted,
Chris Karr, Chair

Which motion prevailed.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

MR. PRESIDENT:

The Committee on Senate Military and Veterans Affairs respectfully reports that it has had under consideration **SB 82** and returns the same with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

Respectfully submitted,
Larry P. Zikmund, Chair

MR. PRESIDENT:

The Committee on Senate Commerce and Energy respectfully reports that it has had under consideration **SB 67** and returns the same with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

Also MR. PRESIDENT:

The Committee on Senate Commerce and Energy respectfully reports that it has had under consideration **SB 29, 47 and 93** and returns the same with the recommendation that said bills do pass, and having been certified as uncontested, be placed on the consent calendar.

Respectfully submitted,
Casey Crabtree, Chair

MR. PRESIDENT:

The Committee on Senate Judiciary respectfully reports that it has had under consideration **SB 88** and returns the same with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

88B

On the Introduced bill, delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"

Section 1. That § 43-45-3 be AMENDED:

43-45-3. A homestead:

- (1) As defined and limited in chapter 43-31, is absolutely exempt; or
- (2) In the event ~~such the~~ homestead is sold under the provisions of chapter 21-19, or is sold by the owner voluntarily, the proceeds of ~~such the~~ sale, not exceeding the sum of ~~sixty one hundred~~ thousand dollars, ~~is are~~ absolutely exempt for a period of one year after the receipt of ~~such the~~ proceeds by the owner. If the homestead is divided by court order pursuant to § 25-4-44 and a lien is imposed on the homestead for the benefit of the nonoccupant spouse pursuant to § 25-4-42, absence from the homestead and loss of title to the homestead pursuant to the court order, ~~does do~~ not constitute forfeiture of the homestead exemption, and homestead protection ~~shall must~~ attach to the judicial lien for a period of one year. ~~Such The~~ exemption ~~shall be is~~ limited to one hundred seventy thousand dollars for a homestead of a person seventy years of age or older or the unremarried surviving spouse of such person so long as it continues to possess the character of a homestead.

"

1 And that as so amended, **SB 88** do pass, and having been certified as uncontested, be placed
2 on the consent calendar.

3 Also MR. PRESIDENT:

4 The Committee on Senate Judiciary respectfully reports that it has had under consideration
5 **HB 1011 and 1049** and returns the same with the recommendation that said bills do pass, and
6 having been certified as uncontested, be placed on the consent calendar.

7 Respectfully submitted,
8 David Wheeler, Chair

9 MR. PRESIDENT:

10 The Committee on Senate Agriculture and Natural Resources respectfully reports that it has
11 had under consideration **HB 1022** and returns the same with the recommendation that said bill do
12 pass, and having been certified as uncontested, be placed on the consent calendar.

13 Respectfully submitted,
14 Tom Pischke, Chair

15 MR. PRESIDENT:

16 The Committee on Legislative Procedure respectfully reports that the Office of Engrossing and
17 Enrolling has carefully compared **SB 38** and finds the same correctly enrolled.

18 Respectfully submitted,
19 Chris Karr, Chair

20 **REPORTS OF SELECT COMMITTEES**

21 MR. PRESIDENT:

22 The Senate Select Committee on the Nomination for Lieutenant Governor respectfully reports
23 that it has had under consideration the nomination of Tonnis H. Venhuizen for the office of Lieutenant
24 Governor and returns the same with the recommendation that the Senate do confirm Tonnis H.
25 Venhuizen as the Lieutenant Governor.

26 Respectfully submitted,
27 Chris Karr, Chair

28 **MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE**

29 MR. PRESIDENT:

30 I have the honor to transmit herewith **HB 1062 and 1073** which have passed the House and
31 your favorable consideration is respectfully requested.

32 Also MR. PRESIDENT:

33 I have the honor to return herewith **SB 38** which has passed the House without change.

1 Also MR. PRESIDENT:

2 I have the honor to transmit herewith **HCR 6001** which has been adopted by the House and
3 your concurrence is respectfully requested.

4 Respectfully,
5 Patricia Miller, Chief Clerk

6 **MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS**

7 **SR 701:** A RESOLUTION, Confirming Tonnis H. Venhuizen, Lincoln County, South Dakota, as
8 lieutenant governor of South Dakota pursuant to S.D. Const., Art. IV, § 6.

9 Was read the second time.

10 Sen. Mehlhaff moved that **SR 701** as found on page 128 of the Senate Journal be adopted.

11 The question being on Sen. Mehlhaff's motion that **SR 701** be adopted.

12 And the roll being called:

13 Yeas 35, Nays 0, Excused 0, Absent 0

14 Yeas: Beal, Blanc, Carley, Crabtree, Davis, Deibert, Duhamel, Foster, Grove, Hohn, Howard,
15 Hulse, Jensen (Kevin), Karr, Kolbeck, Lapka, Larson, Marty, Mehlhaff, Miskimins, Nelson, Otten,
16 Perry, Peterson (Sue), Pischke, Reed, Rohl, Sauder, Schoenfish, Smith, Vilhauer, Voight, Voita,
17 Wheeler, and Zikmund

18 So the motion having received an affirmative vote of a majority of the members-elect, the
19 President declared the motion carried and **SR 701** was adopted.

20 There being no objection, the Senate reverted to Order of Business No. 7 - Messages from the
21 House.

22 **MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE**

23 MR. PRESIDENT:

24 I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the House has adopted HR 7001
25 confirming Tonnis H. Venhuizen as the Lieutenant Governor of South Dakota.

26 Respectfully,
27 Patricia Miller, Chief Clerk

28 President Pro Tempore Karr turned the gavel over to Lieutenant Governor Tonnis H. Venhuizen.

29 President Venhuizen now presiding.

1

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

2

Sen. Mehlhaff moved that **SB 60 and 68** be deferred to Monday, February 3, 2025, the 13th legislative day.

3

4

Which motion prevailed.

5

SCR 601: A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION, Supporting the designation of a portion of U.S. Highway 12 as the Helen Miller Memorial Highway.

6

7

Was read the second time.

8

Sen. Rohl moved that **SCR 601** be amended as follows:

9

SCR601B

10

On page 1, line 2, of the Senate Transportation Engrossed resolution, delete " as the" and insert " to honor"

11

12

On page 1, line 2, of the Senate Transportation Engrossed resolution, after "the " insert "the late "

13

14

On page 1, line 2, of the Senate Transportation Engrossed resolution, after "Miller" delete " Memorial Highway"

15

16

On page 1, line 18, of the Senate Transportation Engrossed resolution, after "supports" insert " the application for"

17

18

On page 1, line 18, of the Senate Transportation Engrossed resolution, after "of" insert " a portion of"

19

20

On page 1, line 19, of the Senate Transportation Engrossed resolution, delete " as the" and insert " in honor of"

21

22

On page 1, line 19, of the Senate Transportation Engrossed resolution, after "Miller" delete " Memorial Highway"

23

24

On page 1, line 21, of the Senate Transportation Engrossed resolution, after "posting" delete " of the highway"

25

26

Which motion prevailed.

27

Sen. Rohl moved that **SCR 601** as found on page 98 of the Senate Journal be adopted as amended on page 135 of the Senate Journal.

28

29

The question being on Sen. Rohl's motion that **SCR 601** be adopted as amended.

30

And the roll being called:

31

Yeas 35, Nays 0, Excused 0, Absent 0

32

Yeas: Beal, Blanc, Carley, Crabtree, Davis, Deibert, Duhamel, Foster, Grove, Hohn, Howard, Hulse, Jensen (Kevin), Karr, Kolbeck, Lapka, Larson, Marty, Mehlhaff, Miskimins, Nelson, Otten, Perry, Peterson (Sue), Pischke, Reed, Rohl, Sauder, Schoenfish, Smith, Vilhauer, Voight, Voita, Wheeler, and Zikmund

33

34

35

36

So the motion having received an affirmative vote of a majority of the members-elect, the President declared the motion carried and **SCR 601** was adopted as amended.

37

1

CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

2

Sen. Mehlhaff moved that the reports of the Standing Committees on

3

Local Government on **SB 72** as found on page 124 of the Senate Journal; and

4

State Affairs on **SJR 503** as found on page 125 of the Senate Journal be adopted.

5

Which motion prevailed and the reports were adopted.

6

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS AND JOINT RESOLUTIONS

7

The President declared that **SB 87** was withdrawn at the request of the prime sponsor pursuant to JR 6B-1.1.

8

9

SB 130: FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to authorize the shipment of distilled spirits direct to consumers, and to provide a penalty therefor.

10

11

Introduced by: **Senator** Reed

12

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Commerce and Energy.

13

SB 126: FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish the manner of determining payments for the child care assistance program.

14

15

Introduced by: **Senator** Reed

16

SB 133: FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to repeal enforcement provisions and modify requirements related to the fluoridation of public water supplies.

17

18

Introduced by: **Senator** Perry

19

Were read the first time and referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

20

SB 134: FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to provide limitations on liability and damages caused by a wildfire.

21

22

Introduced by: **Senator** Perry

23

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

24

SB 127: FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to authorize the expenditure of moneys by a municipality for the observance of additional holidays.

25

26

Introduced by: **Senator** Rohl

27

SB 128: FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to amend requirements for an official newspaper.

28

Introduced by: **Senator** Rohl

-
- 1 **SB 129:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to modify renewal fee requirements for an on-sale
2 liquor licensee whose business premises have been annexed into a municipality of the first class.
- 3 Introduced by: **Senator** Rohl
- 4 Were read the first time and referred to the Committee on Local Government.
- 5 **SB 124:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish the Incarceration Task Force.
- 6 Introduced by: **Senator** Jensen (Kevin)
- 7 **SB 125:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to make reports produced by automatic tabulating
8 equipment open to public inspection.
- 9 Introduced by: **Senator** Carley
- 10 Were read the first time and referred to the Committee on State Affairs.
- 11 **SB 131:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish an electronic system for vehicle titles.
- 12 Introduced by: **Senator** Kolbeck
- 13 **SB 132:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to make an appropriation for grants to support airport
14 terminal improvement and expansion.
- 15 Introduced by: **Senator** Kolbeck
- 16 **SB 135:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to exempt a motor vehicle insurer from a certain title
17 fee.
- 18 Introduced by: **Senator** Perry
- 19 Were read the first time and referred to the Committee on Transportation.
- 20 **SB 136:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to make an appropriation to enhance the economic
21 health of South Dakota.
- 22 Introduced by: **Senator** Otten
- 23 **SB 137:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to make an appropriation for the economic
24 development of South Dakota.
- 25 Introduced by: **Senator** Otten
- 26 **SB 138:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to make an appropriation for developing the economic
27 viability of South Dakota.
- 28 Introduced by: **Senator** Otten
- 29 **SB 139:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise death reporting requirements.
- 30 Introduced by: **Senator** Schoenfish

1 **SB 140:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise a provision related to the reimbursement of
2 expenses incurred by a county in detaining a parolee.

3 Introduced by: **Senator** Duhamel

4 **SB 141:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to distinguish between new construction and
5 improvements to existing structures for purposes of calculating increases in revenue payable from
6 property taxes.

7 Introduced by: **Senator** Howard

8 **SB 142:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise the dates for submission of budget requests.

9 Introduced by: **Senator** Karr

10 **SB 143:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to modify the composition and staffing requirements
11 of the South Dakota-Ireland Trade Commission.

12 Introduced by: **Senator** Karr

13 **SB 144:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require legislative approval for significant capital
14 expenditures by the Department of Game, Fish and Parks.

15 Introduced by: **Senator** Karr

16 **SB 145:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require legislative approval of real property leases
17 that are necessary for the operation of state government and exceed specified durations or rental
18 payments.

19 Introduced by: **Senator** Karr

20 **SB 146:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise provisions on interim transfers and
21 appropriations.

22 Introduced by: **Senator** Karr

23 **SB 147:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to promote and enhance the greatness of South
24 Dakota.

25 Introduced by: **Senator** Mehlhaff

26 **SB 148:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to provide for the economic development of South
27 Dakota.

28 Introduced by: **Senator** Mehlhaff

29 **SB 149:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to improve the operations and effectiveness of South
30 Dakota.

31 Introduced by: **Senator** Mehlhaff

32 **SB 150:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to improve South Dakota.

33 Introduced by: **Senator** Mehlhaff

34 **SB 151:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to improve the transparency and openness of state
35 government.

36 Introduced by: **Senator** Mehlhaff

1 **SB 152:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to promote the future success and development of
2 South Dakota.

3 Introduced by: **Senator** Mehlhaff

4 **SB 153:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require that expenditures from the department of
5 game, fish and parks fund be budgeted through the general appropriation bill.

6 Introduced by: **Senator** Karr

7 **SB 154:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to prohibit pharmaceutical manufacturers and
8 wholesale drug distributors from interfering in contracts between 340B entities and pharmacies and
9 to provide a penalty therefor.

10 Introduced by: **Senator** Reed

11 **SB 155:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to reduce the amount of net receipts of unclaimed
12 property deposited into the general fund.

13 Introduced by: **Senator** Howard

14 **SB 156:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to increase the minimum age for marriage.

15 Introduced by: **Senator** Davis

16 **SB 157:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require proof of workers' compensation insurance
17 for contractors of public improvements and to establish procedures for verifying workers'
18 compensation coverage and premium payments.

19 Introduced by: **Senator** Peterson (Sue)

20 **SB 158:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to address preauthorization requirements for certain
21 health care services and utilization review requirements for certain health benefit plans.

22 Introduced by: **Senator** Davis

23 **SB 159:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish informational and membership
24 requirements for a labor union, organization, or association and provide a penalty therefor.

25 Introduced by: **Senator** Peterson (Sue)

26 **SB 160:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise exceptions to the imposition of a Class 2
27 misdemeanor when no other penalty is provided by statute.

28 Introduced by: **Senator** Peterson (Sue)

29 **SB 161:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish a maximum school administrator salary.

30 Introduced by: **Senator** Peterson (Sue)

31 **SB 162:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish a biomonitoring pilot program for
32 firefighters and to make an appropriation therefor.

33 Introduced by: **Senator** Larson

34 **SB 163:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require certain firefighting equipment purchased
35 by a fire department contain particular labeling.

36 Introduced by: **Senator** Larson

1 **SB 164:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to prohibit the use of a deepfake to influence an
2 election and to provide a penalty therefor.

3 Introduced by: **Senator** Larson

4 **SB 165:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise and repeal certain provisions related to the
5 wearing of a safety seat belt and to provide a penalty therefor.

6 Introduced by: **Senator** Larson

7 **SB 166:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to clarify that a digital network is not subject to a
8 cause of action based on the doctrine of product liability.

9 Introduced by: **Senator** Perry

10 **SB 167:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise certain provisions pertaining to municipal
11 government.

12 Introduced by: **Senator** Reed

13 **SB 168:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to prohibit non-disclosure agreements in settlement
14 cases involving the Associated School Boards of South Dakota Protective Trust Workers
15 Compensation Pool.

16 Introduced by: **Senator** Peterson (Sue)

17 **SB 169:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require that taxing districts hold a public hearing
18 when increasing property tax revenues relative to the previous year.

19 Introduced by: **Senator** Hulse

20 **SB 170:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to authorize the South Dakota State Brand Board to
21 enter a memorandum of understanding with any Indian tribe for the investigation of cattle theft.

22 Introduced by: **Senator** Foster

23 **SB 171:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to add questions about historical property to seller's
24 disclosure statement.

25 Introduced by: **Senator** Reed

26 **SB 172:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to provide a rebuttable presumption in favor of joint
27 physical custody of a minor child.

28 Introduced by: **Senator** Pischke

29 **SB 173:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise the process by which a recount may be
30 requested.

31 Introduced by: **Senator** Wheeler

32 **SB 174:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to include certain types of vehicles in the abandoned
33 titling process.

34 Introduced by: **Senator** Wheeler

35 **SB 175:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to create provisions governing litigation financing.

36 Introduced by: **Senator** Wheeler

1 **SB 176:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to clarify the discovery procedures and powers of the
2 Government Operations and Audit Committee.

3 Introduced by: **Senator** Wheeler

4 **SB 177:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to provide a sales tax refund for goods and services
5 related to data center operations.

6 Introduced by: **Senator** Wheeler

7 **SB 178:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to increase a tax on jet fuel.

8 Introduced by: **Senator** Hohn

9 **SB 179:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to modify requirements for off-road vehicle dealers at
10 special events.

11 Introduced by: **Senator** Wheeler

12 **SB 180:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to to require age verification before an individual may
13 access an application from an online application store.

14 Introduced by: **Senator** Peterson (Sue)

15 **SB 181:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to provide for noncustodial visitation of a minor born
16 out of wedlock.

17 Introduced by: **Senator** Pischke

18 **SB 182:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require every permanent or emergency
19 administrative rule proposal to receive the approval of an elected official before submission to the
20 Legislative Research Council.

21 Introduced by: **Senator** Peterson (Sue)

22 **SB 183:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to establish requirements that state agencies must
23 follow when applying for federal grants.

24 Introduced by: **Senator** Peterson (Sue)

25 **SB 184:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to repeal existing aircraft registration fees and
26 establish a new schedule of aircraft registration fees.

27 Introduced by: **Senator** Hohn

28 **SCR 602:** A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION, Celebrating the sister-state relationship with Taiwan.

29 Introduced by: **Senator** Zikmund

30 **SCR 603:** A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION, Supporting the establishment of a standardized
31 system to recognize and award academic credit or certification for military service.

32 Introduced by: **Senator** Zikmund

33 **SCR 604:** A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION, Supporting the expansion of transportation services
34 for veterans receiving medical care in this state.

35 Introduced by: **Senator** Zikmund

1 **SJR 505:** A JOINT RESOLUTION, Proposing and submitting to the voters at the next general
2 election an amendment to the Constitution of the State of South Dakota, establishing the trust for
3 unclaimed property fund.

4 Introduced by: **Senator** Howard

5 **SJR 506:** A JOINT RESOLUTION, Proposing and submitting to the voters at the next general
6 election an amendment to the Constitution of the State of South Dakota, limiting to a flat rate the
7 real property taxes.

8 Introduced by: **Senator** Carley

9 Were read the first time.

10 The following bill was read on January 22, 2025, and today the President Pro Tem assigned
11 this bill to committee:

12 **SB 87** was referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

13 The following bill was read on January 24, 2025, and today the President Pro Tem assigned
14 this bill to committee:

15 **SB 98** was referred to the Committee on Commerce and Energy.

16 The following bill was read on January 27, 2025, and today the President Pro Tem assigned
17 this bill to committee:

18 **SB 100** was referred to the Committee on State Affairs.

19 The following bills were read on January 29, 2025, and today the President Pro Tem assigned
20 these bills to committee:

21 **SB 114** and **SB 120** were referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

22 **SB 117** was referred to the Committee on Commerce and Energy.

23 **SB 118** was referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

24 **SB 119, SB 122,** and **SB 123** were referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

25 **SB 113** was referred to the Committee on State Affairs.

26 **SB 121** was referred to the Committee on Taxation.

27 **FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS AND JOINT RESOLUTIONS**

28 **HB 1062:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to amend provisions pertaining to the maintenance
29 and publication of the statewide voter registration file.

30 **HB 1073:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to designate contact information provided on a voter
31 registration form as not for public inspection.

1 **HCR 6001:** A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION, Honoring healthcare workers who died and risked
2 their lives during the COVID-19 pandemic.

3 Were read the first time.

4 The following bills were read on January 28, 2025, and today the President assigned these bills
5 to committee:

6 **HB 1029, HB 1030, HB 1031, and HB 1032** were referred to the Committee on Retirement
7 Laws.

8 **SECOND READING OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS**

9 **SB 77:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to update terminology related to ambulance operators.

10 Was read the second time.

11 The question being "Shall **SB 77** pass?"

12 And the roll being called:

13 Yeas 35, Nays 0, Excused 0, Absent 0

14 Yeas: Beal, Blanc, Carley, Crabtree, Davis, Deibert, Duhamel, Foster, Grove, Hohn, Howard,
15 Hulse, Jensen (Kevin), Karr, Kolbeck, Lapka, Larson, Marty, Mehlhaff, Miskimins, Nelson, Otten,
16 Perry, Peterson (Sue), Pischke, Reed, Rohl, Sauder, Schoenfish, Smith, Vilhauer, Voight, Voita,
17 Wheeler, and Zikmund

18 So the bill having received an affirmative vote of a majority of the members-elect, the President
19 declared the bill passed and the title was agreed to.

20 **SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS AND JOINT RESOLUTIONS**

21 **SB 14:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise and repeal provisions related to agricultural
22 production facilities and to provide a penalty therefor.

23 Was read the second time.

24 The question being "Shall **SB 14** pass as amended?"

25 And the roll being called:

26 Yeas 33, Nays 2, Excused 0, Absent 0

27 Yeas: Beal, Blanc, Carley, Crabtree, Davis, Deibert, Duhamel, Foster, Grove, Hohn, Howard,
28 Hulse, Jensen (Kevin), Karr, Kolbeck, Lapka, Marty, Mehlhaff, Miskimins, Nelson, Otten, Perry,
29 Peterson (Sue), Pischke, Reed, Rohl, Sauder, Schoenfish, Vilhauer, Voight, Voita, Wheeler, and
30 Zikmund

31 Nays: Larson and Smith

32 So the bill having received an affirmative vote of a majority of the members-elect, the President
33 declared the bill passed and the title was agreed to.

1 **SB 64:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise provisions related to the establishment of an
2 initial parole date.

3 Was read the second time.

4 The question being "Shall **SB 64** pass as amended?"

5 And the roll being called:

6 Yeas 33, Nays 2, Excused 0, Absent 0

7 Yeas: Beal, Blanc, Carley, Crabtree, Davis, Deibert, Duhamel, Foster, Grove, Hohn, Howard,
8 Hulse, Jensen (Kevin), Karr, Kolbeck, Lapka, Marty, Mehlhaff, Miskimins, Nelson, Otten, Perry,
9 Peterson (Sue), Pischke, Reed, Rohl, Sauder, Schoenfish, Vilhauer, Voight, Voita, Wheeler, and
10 Zikmund

11 Nays: Larson and Smith

12 So the bill having received an affirmative vote of a majority of the members-elect, the President
13 declared the bill passed and the title was agreed to.

14 **SB 71:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to revise provisions pertaining to the compulsory age
15 for school attendance.

16 Was read the second time.

17 Sen. Rohl moved that **SB 71** be amended as follows:

18 71C

19 On page 2, line 23, of the Senate Education Engrossed bill, after "presents" insert " any one of
20 the following"

21 On page 2, line 25, of the Senate Education Engrossed bill, after "custodian;

22 (2) Verification" delete " from a school administrator"

23 Which motion prevailed.

24 The question being "Shall **SB 71** pass as amended?"

25 And the roll being called:

26 Yeas 34, Nays 1, Excused 0, Absent 0

27 Yeas: Beal, Blanc, Carley, Crabtree, Davis, Deibert, Duhamel, Foster, Grove, Hohn, Howard,
28 Hulse, Jensen (Kevin), Karr, Kolbeck, Lapka, Larson, Marty, Mehlhaff, Miskimins, Nelson, Otten,
29 Perry, Peterson (Sue), Pischke, Reed, Rohl, Sauder, Schoenfish, Smith, Vilhauer, Voita, Wheeler,
30 and Zikmund

31 Nays: Voight

32 So the bill having received an affirmative vote of a majority of the members-elect, the President
33 declared the bill passed and the title was agreed to.

1 **SB 81:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to prohibit the use of a firearms code for transactions
2 involving firearms, accessories, components, and ammunition and to provide a civil penalty therefor.

3 Was read the second time.

4 The question being "Shall **SB 81** pass as amended?"

5 And the roll being called:

6 Yeas 33, Nays 2, Excused 0, Absent 0

7 Yeas: Beal, Blanc, Carley, Crabtree, Davis, Deibert, Duhamel, Foster, Grove, Hohn, Howard,
8 Hulse, Jensen (Kevin), Karr, Kolbeck, Lapka, Marty, Mehlhaff, Miskimins, Nelson, Otten, Perry,
9 Peterson (Sue), Pischke, Reed, Rohl, Sauder, Schoenfish, Vilhauer, Voight, Voita, Wheeler, and
10 Zikmund

11 Nays: Larson and Smith

12 So the bill having received an affirmative vote of a majority of the members-elect, the President
13 declared the bill passed and the title was agreed to.

14 **SIGNING OF BILLS**

15 The President publicly read the title to

16 **SB 38:** FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to modify requirements for a vehicle approaching a
17 vehicle that is stopped or occupying the shoulder of the highway with warning lights flashing.

18 And signed the same in the presence of the Senate.

19 **COMMEMORATIONS**

20 **SC 803:** A LEGISLATIVE COMMEMORATION, Recognizing the Dell Rapids Quarriers as the 2024
21 Class A State volleyball champions.

22 Introduced by: **Senator** Pischke

23 **SC 804:** A LEGISLATIVE COMMEMORATION, Honoring the 2023-2024 Outstanding School
24 Administrators of South Dakota: Todd Foster, Brookings Middle School Principal; Dr. Julie Hatling,
25 Belle Fourche Elementary School Principal; Camille Kaul, Aberdeen Curriculum Leader; Jason
26 Kolousek, Wessington Springs Secondary School Principal; Kristi Lewis, Chester School Business
27 Official; Mark Naugle, Custer School Superintendent; Amanda Olinger, Harrisburg Assistant Middle
28 School Principal; and Laura Welch, Lennox Director of Special Education.

29 Introduced by: **Senators** Schoenfish, Crabtree, Deibert, Otten, Perry, Reed, and Smith and
30 **Representatives** Greenfield, Aylward, Bahmuller, Emery, Kull, Moore, Muckey, Novstrup, Reisch,
31 Shorma, Venhuizen, Walburg, and Weisgram

32 Sen. Foster moved that the Senate do now adjourn, which motion prevailed and at 2:27 p.m.
33 the Senate adjourned.

34 Peggy Laurenz, Secretary

